
 
 
 

Corporate Parenting Panel 
 
 
Date Friday 20 May 2022 

Time 9.30 am 

Venue Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 

Items which are open to the press and public 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Substitute Members   

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2022  (Pages 3 - 10) 

4. Declarations of Interest   

5. Adopt Coast to Coast - Report and presentation of Head of 
Service, Adopt Coast to Coast  (Pages 11 - 26) 

6. Number of Looked After Children - Verbal update from Head of 
Children's Social Care   

7. Ofsted Updates - Verbal update from Head of Children's Social 
Care   

8. Number of Foster Care Households in 2022/23 - Verbal update 
from Head of Children's Social Care   

9. Proud Moments - Verbal update from Strategic Manager   

10. Children in Care Council Update - Presentation of Project Officer, 
Investing in Children  (Pages 27 - 28) 

11. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.   

12. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 
discussion of items containing exempt information.   



 
 
 
 

Part B 
 
Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open to the 

public (consideration of exempt or confidential information) 

 
13. Regulation 44 Visits and Regulatory Body Ratings of Children's 

Residential Homes - Joint Report of Head of Children's Social 
Care and Head of Early Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable Children  
(Pages 29 - 42) 

14. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.   

 
 
 

Helen Lynch 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
County Hall 
Durham 
12 May 2022 
 
To: The Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel 

 
 Councillor M Simmons (Chair) 

Councillor M Walton (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors R Adcock-Forster, B Bainbridge, C Bell, J Charlton, 
B Coult, S Deinali, C Fletcher, J Griffiths, O Gunn, 
T Henderson, C Hood, C Hunt, J Miller, I Roberts, K Robson, 
K Rooney, S Townsend and C Varty 
  

 Co-opted Members 
  
 J Bell, L Burns, W Taylor, R Upton, K Watson 

Young persons representative of the Children in Care Council  
 

 

 Contact: Jill Hogg Tel: 03000 269 711 

 
 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

At a Meeting of Corporate Parenting Panel held in Committee Room 2, County 
Hall, Durham on Friday 29 April 2022 at 9.30 am 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor M Simmons (Chair) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors M Walton (Vice-Chair), R Adcock-Forster, B Bainbridge, J Charlton, 
B Coult, S Deinali, C Fletcher, T Henderson, C Hunt, B Kellett (substitute for       
Cllr J Griffiths), J Miller, I Roberts, K Robson, K Rooney, S Townsend and C Varty 
 
Co-opted Members: 

Heather McFarlane, Wendy Taylor   
 
Also Present: 
Laura Caunce – Service Manager  
Rachel Harris – Service Improvement Manager 
Jodie Henderson – Strategic Manager for Looked After and Permanence 
Robert Johnson - Project Manager, Investing in Children with Caitlyn Gray and 
Luke Joseph representing the Children in Care Council 
Martyn Stenton – Head of Early Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable Children 
Melanie Stubbs – Head of the Virtual School   
Jayne Watson – Senior Partnerships Officer  
Julian Wilson – Senior Lawyer, Children and Adult Services  

 

 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors C Bell, J Griffiths,                
O Gunn,  C  Hood and Co-opted Member, Julie Bell.  Apologies were also 
noted from officer Helen Fergusson, Head of Children’s Social Care. 
 

2 Substitute Members  
 
Councillor B Kellett was in attendance for Councillor J Griffiths. 
 

3 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 March 2022 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair.   
 
The following matters arising were reported. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
Item 7 –  The piece of descriptive writing had been shared with the Panel.  
The Virtual School Head informed the Panel that she had met with Laura 
Armstrong, Professional Practice Manager and Robert Johnson, Project 
Manager for Investing in Children to progress plans to develop the work in 
collaboration with the young people, to link in with next year’s book festival.   
 
Item 8 – The film being produced by the young people to raise awareness of 
sibling groups had been delayed as difficulties had been encountered gaining 
consent from some of the parties involved. It is hoped that some parts of the 
film will be available to be shared with the Panel in the near future.  
 
Item 9 -  A briefing note had been circulated to the Panel providing an update 
on children looked after placed in secure accommodation. 
 
Item 10 – The fostering t.v. advert had been shared with the Panel members 
to promote on their social media channels. 
 
Item 12 –  The Panel noted that travel costs to and from the Young People’s 
Hub are being subsidised.  Initial feedback on the use of the Hub is very 
positive and an evaluation will take place in August to gather young people’s 
views on the Hub, which will be used for future developments.  
 
Item 13 - The Virtual School Head reported that representatives for the 
Virtual School Sub-Group will be identified at forthcoming Primary, 
Secondary and Special Heads meetings.  
 

4 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5 Number of Looked After Children  
 
The Head of Early Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable Children reported a slight 
increase in the number of looked after children, with the figure being 989.  
The Panel noted this included 30 young people for whom the court process 
had been delayed, however, progress is being made and the young people 
are expected to leave care within the near future. 
 

6 Ofsted Updates  
 
The Service Manager for Children and Young People reported that a full 
Ofsted inspection had taken place at one of the Children’s Residential 
Homes and the findings would be shared with the Panel on publication of the 
report.  
 

Page 4



7 Proud Moments  
 
The Service Manager for Children and Young People spoke of the good 
progress made by a looked after young person who had recently moved back 
into the county. The Panel heard that the young person, who requires a 
different approach, had settled well and was engaging in education and 
growing in confidence in their new environment.  She spoke of how pleased 
she was to see the young person thriving and she also paid tribute to the 
staff who had gone to great lengths to work as a team to understand and 
respond to the needs of the young person.    
 
Another proud moment was reported by the Strategic Manager for Looked 
After and Permanence who referred to a group of asylum seeking young 
people who had formed a football team.  The team comprises of young 
people of various nationalities and despite their language barriers, they were 
communicating with each other through their shared passion for football.  
The Strategic Manager observed how heart-warming it was to see the young 
people enjoying themselves and she described how the group had 
encouraged other looked after young people and care leavers to develop 
football teams, in the hope that this will lead to the establishment of a football 
league in the future.  An agreement was made to circulate the UASC flyer for 
drop-in and football sessions. 
 
Rachel Harris, Service Improvement Manager, was delighted to inform the 
Panel that Caitlyn had gained a place at University to study social work and 
the Panel agreed Caitlyn will be a great asset to the profession.  The 
Strategic Manager for Looked After and Permanence added that Luke is also 
destined for a great future as he is studying for a business degree at 
University. The Panel congratulated Caitlyn and Luke for their hard work and 
wished them continued success.  
 

8 Investing in Children / Children in Care Council Update  
 
Robert Johnson from Investing in Children and Caitlyn and Luke of the 
Children in Care Council provided an update on the CiCC’s recent activities 
(for copy of presentation see file).  
 
Caitlyn explained that the CiCC had delivered training to Sunderland 
University social work students and future foster carers.  The training for 
foster carers included input from two new CiCC members aged 8 and 13, 
whose participation made a significant impact on the attendees.  Luke 
informed the Panel that feedback from the session was very positive and 
attendees remarked on how the openness and honesty of the young people 
had proved very informative. The young people were proud to hear  
feedback that their training is as good as that delivered by the professionals.  
 

Page 5



The young people spoke of how much they are looking forward to welcoming 
Corporate Parenting Panel Members to the next joint CiCC / Corporate 
Parenting Panel meeting being held on 12 May.  Caitlyn emphasised the 
value of the attendance of the Corporate Parenting Panel members, saying 
the young people have many exciting ideas which they would like to share.  
 
The Panel heard a poem written by a young person resident in a Children’s 
Home which expressed feelings of loneliness.  Councillor Robson 
commented on how the young person’s use of language and vivid detail 
captured the imagination.  The Project Manager for Investing in Children 
informed the Panel that the staff at the young person’s home are supporting 
the individual, together with their school, in order to encourage their talent.  
Councillor Roberts referred to the discussion at the previous meeting on the 
importance of curating these pieces of work for future reference, saying they 
may benefit other young people in years to come, who may seek comfort 
from knowing that others have experienced the same feelings.  An 
agreement was made to circulate a copy of the poem, with the young 
person’s consent.  
 
Councillor Walton said it was pleasing to see that the young people’s training 
sessions are attracting such glowing reviews from foster carers, which 
echoes the sentiments of Corporate Parenting Panel members. The Project 
Manager for Investing in Children spoke of how proud he is of the young 
people involved in the training adding that they too, are gaining a great deal 
from participating, which is empowering them and boosting their confidence. 
 
Councillor Townsend informed the Panel that she and Councillor Deinali had 
attended the recent National Education Union conference at which a motion 
was passed to campaign for increased inclusion of looked after young people 
in the curriculum and more consultation with care experienced young people 
on messages and language. Updates on progress will be provided.  
 
In response to a request from Councillor Miller for ArtStops artwork to be 
displayed in bus-stops in his division, the Senior Partnerships Officer agreed 
to check this with the Professional Practice Manager, as it was understood 
that this had already been progressed.   
 
The Chair thanked Rob, Caitlyn and Luke for the informative update and she 
encouraged members to attend the joint CiCC / Corporate Parenting Panel 
meeting on 12 May at the Sjovall Centre.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



9 Update from joint Children in Care Council / Corporate Parenting Panel 
meeting on 19 October 2021  
 
The Panel received a presentation from the Strategic Manager for Looked 
After and Permanence on actions taken in response to issues raised by 
young people at the joint CICC/CPP meeting held on 19 October (for copy of 
presentation see file of minutes).    
 
During the presentation, the Strategic Manager explained that the three main 
issues raised were support for care leavers, family time and stigma and 
discrimination.  In addition, the Service Improvement Manager updated the 
Panel that the service is working on an additional feedback system for young 
people looked after and their families. Work with the Children in Care Council 
had found that an increasing number of young people are requesting access 
to their own records and more work will be undertaken to assist young 
people to gain a better understanding of accessing their own records and to 
ensure they have the right support in place with regard to this.  
 
Referring to the steps taken in respect of improvements to family time 
arrangements, Councillor Miller commented that he was pleased to see the 
Service had taken steps to explain the COVID rules and he acknowledged 
the added pressure this would have placed on looked after young people and 
their families and carers.  With regard to the transport offer, Councillor Miller 
expressed disappointment that Bishop Auckland college is the only college 
not to offer a bus pass and he asked if more could be done to encourage the 
college to participate in the scheme. Councillor Miller added his view that bus 
passes should be available to young people at all times, not only term-times, 
and he asked that this issue be reviewed.  
 
Councillor Miller updated the Panel that he had visited the family time centre 
at Bishop Auckland and he complimented the staff and expressed the 
opinion that the facilities could be improved.  Councillor Miller spoke in 
support of the establishment of a Care Experienced Scrutiny Committee, 
however, he emphasised the importance that issues raised there should also 
be reported to the Corporate Parenting Panel.   
 
Councillor Coult referred to the ‘all time’ top-up bus pass and asked how long 
the offer was expected to last. The Strategic Manager for Looked After and 
Permanence explained this was likely to continue until the summer term and 
was subject to review.   
 
Commenting on the waiting time for driving lessons, Councillor Coult asked 
whether the Service could link with companies to request block bookings.  
The Strategic Manager for Looked After and Permanence responded that the 
procurement team are involved, however, there is a general lack of 
availability of driving lessons and tests nationally, following COVID-19. 

Page 7



 
In relation to school governors being asked to raise the profile of care 
experienced young people, the Head of the Virtual School explained that 
each school’s designated governor for children looked after meets with 
designated teachers to ensure children looked after receive the best 
education.  In addition, the Children Looked After Policy outlines the role of 
the designated governor for children looked after.    
 
Councillor Charlton expressed concern at the lack of representation on the 
Panel and its sub-groups from Academies.  The Head of the Virtual School 
responded that, under the Government’s plans for Academisation, it was 
likely that representation from Academies will increase in the future.  
 
Heather McFarlane, Designated Nurse for Safeguarding Children, referred to 
the meetings held with community midwives and asked whether the 
discussions centred around their community or hospital experience.  The 
Strategic Manager for Looked After and Permanence replied that the young 
people discussed their community experience and concerns were raised that 
simply being a care experienced young person was the reason for referral as 
a ‘vulnerable parent’.  The Designated Nurse responded that knowledge of 
the young person’s care experience helps to inform the support required, 
however, she expressed concern at the young people’s perceptions, adding 
that it would be useful to hold further meetings in order to improve 
understanding.  In response to a question from Councillor Hunt as to the 
support in place for young parents, the Strategic Manager for Looked After 
and Permanence explained that support is very much tailored to the 
individual young person. 
 
Councillor Walton thanked officers for the comprehensive report adding that 
it addressed many of the issues that had been discussed at recent Corporate 
Parenting Panel meetings.  She commented that she had received very 
positive feedback from PCSOs on the impact of the training delivered by the 
young people of the Children in Care Council.   
 
Referring to the review of family time locations, Councillor Walton asked if 
there was a timeframe for the changes to be implemented.  The Strategic 
Manager for Looked After and Permanence replied that there was no specific 
timeframe, however, there would be no detriment to the family time 
experience as the review included a move towards using additional, less 
formal, locations where appropriate, as well as virtual family time, using a 
range of platforms. 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



Councillor Bainbridge asked Caitlyn and Luke if they were satisfied with the 
‘You Said, We Did’ actions. The young people responded that they were 
pleased to see that a great deal of positive changes were underway, that 
they were looking forward to future progress and they thanked the Panel for 
their engagement.  They added that, at the Children in Care Council 
meetings, the young people talked about how well the Panel had listen and 
responded to their concerns.   
 

10 Number of Foster Care Households in 2022/23  
 
The item was deferred to the next meeting for an update to be provided by 
the Head of Children’s Social Care.  
 

11 Care Leavers Strategy and Action Plan January 2022 - December 2024  
 
The Panel received a report and presentation from the Strategic Manager for 
Looked After and Permanence on the new Strategy for Children in Care and 
Care Leavers (for copy of report and presentation see file of minutes).    
 
The Strategic Manager explained the Local Offer and how the Service is 
committed to co-production of developments through engagement with 
looked after young people and care leavers, with a group of care leavers 
meeting to evaluate Durham’s Local Offer, compared with those nationally.   
Key priorities for the future include establishing a young person’s Scrutiny 
Committee to drive the priorities and progress of work.  This will enable the 
continued co-production of services. 
 
Councillor Miller asked whether the information provided to young people 
visiting the Young People’s Hub with regard to education, employment and 
training includes information on vocational qualifications and apprenticeships 
as well as information relating to further and higher education.  The Head of 
the Virtual School explained that all young people looked after have an 
allocated DurhamWorks worker to assist that young person to follow the 
avenue of their choice, whether that is to develop practical skills, train for 
new skills or to continue with their education. 
 
Councillor Walton spoke of how useful the ‘You Said, We Did’ approach had 
been and said she hoped to see this continue in the future.  Referring to the 
Care Leavers Action Plan she pointed out that the document included 
references to ‘risk assessments’ and requested that all documents use the 
agreed ‘young person friendly’ terminology. 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



The Strategic Manager for Looked After and Permanence informed the Panel 
that no location had been identified for the next Young People’s Hub and it is 
hoped that this will be informed by the young people, through their evaluation 
of the current Hub. In addition, Corporate Parenting Panel Members will be 
involved, as well as local Members.  
  
In response to a question from the Panel on the role of Young Person’s 
Advisers, the Strategic Manager for Looked After and Permanence explained 
their role is to work with the individual to develop all aspects of their plan, 
including helping the young person to understand their care experience, if 
they wish to do so, and providing practical support such as help with finance, 
benefits, relationships, education and employment.  Councillor Deinali asked 
whether the Strategy included information on the introduction of the new 
technical qualification, ‘T’ Levels.  The Head of the Virtual School replied that 
no information was included specifically on ‘T’ Levels, however, the Service 
works with each young person to develop a bespoke package, with 
consideration given to all options. 
 

Resolved: 
 

That the report be noted.   
 

12 Any other business  
 
The Head of Early Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable Children informed the 
Panel that two dates will be arranged over the summer for Panel members to 
visit the MASH Centre.  The dates will be circulated in due course.  
 

13 Exclusion of the public  
 
Resolved: 
 
That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely discussion of exempt information as defined 
in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

14 Regulation 44 visits and Regulatory Body ratings of Children's 
Residential Homes  
 
The Panel received the Regulation 44 Visits and Regulatory Body ratings of 
Children’s Residential Homes report, presented by the Strategic Manager 
(for copy see file of minutes). 
  
Resolved:  
 
That the report be noted. 

Page 10



             

         

Corporate Parenting Panel 

20 May 2022 

Adopt Coast to Coast 

 

Report of Paula Gibbons, Head of Service, Adopt Coast to Coast  

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Countywide 

Purpose of the Report 

1 To provide an update on the 1st year of the Regional Adoption Agency, 
in respect of the activity for the Durham spoke. 

Executive summary 

2 Adopt Coast to Coast launched on 1 April 2021.  It is a partnership 
Regional Adoption Agency for Durham and Cumbria County Councils 
and Together for Children who delivers Children’s Services on behalf of 
Sunderland City Council.  It was established as the ‘go to’ agency for 
those interested in adopting. 

Recommendation 

3 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to receive the 
presentation and marketing activity update, for the first year of operation 
from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022. 

 

  

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



Background 

4 Adopt Coast to Coast was established as the Regional Adoption 
Agency. 

5 Due to the Coronavirus Pandemic restrictions, Adopt Coast to Coast 
service launched virtually on 1 April 2021; it was the 31st Regional 
Adoption Agency to go live. 

6 Adopt Coast to Coast works across the following three spokes, whilst 
the spokes continue to provide their own adoption services: 

(a) Durham County Council 

(b) Cumbria County Council 

(c) Together for Children (for Sunderland City Council).  

7 Adopt Coast to Coast is branded separate to the three spokes but 
works alongside them to ensure the prospective adopters journey is 
streamlined, and that early matching is supported. 

Conclusion 

8 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel will have an overview of 
marketing activity during the first year of operation and will be aware of 
the next steps for Adopt Coast to Coast. 

9 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel will understand how they 
are able to support the service and be advocates for adoption. 

 

 

Author 

Paula Gibbons  Tel:03000 265235 

  

Page 12



Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

Relevant legislation is adhered to within the spokes, in relation to adoption. 

Finance 

None. 

Consultation 

None. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

None. 

Climate Change 

None. 

Human Rights 

Text. 

Crime and Disorder 

None. 

Staffing 

None. 

Accommodation 

None. 

Risk 

None. 

Procurement 

None. 

  

Page 13



Appendix 2:  Marketing Activity 

 

Attached as a separate report 

 

 

Page 14



 
 

 

Adopt Coast to Coast 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

 

Marketing Activity 

The marketing activity for 2021-2022 for Adopt Coast to Coast was all about brand recognition 
and getting the name out as far and wide as possible.  Whilst events and some more traditional 
tools couldn’t be employed due to the pandemic activity focused on the following actions:  

• Public relations – stories about our launch, appeals, events, campaigns and more  

• Internal communications – amongst three partners  
• Radio campaign – activity during the launch and another campaign in October  
• TV advert – to celebrate the launch of Adopt Coast to Coast  
• Google advertising – making sure Adopt Coast to Coast appears highly when 

searched for 

• Facebook and Instagram advertising – to raise awareness and promote events 

• Display advertising on key websites to raise awareness of Adopt Coast to Coast  

• Third party campaigns – joining in with activity such as for National Adoption Week 
or New Family Social’s  
 

       LGBT+ Adoption and Fostering Week 

• Organic social media activity 

• Newsletters to adopters and those interested in adoption  
• Spoke support from three partner local authorities including emails, internal 

publications, external publications, intranet  
• Regular website updates 

 

 

Adopt Coast to Coast and spokes’ performance 

 Adopt Coast to 
Coast 

Cumbria Durham Together for 
Children 

Enquiries 
(2021/22) 

558  186 (*33%) 216 (*39%) 156 (*28%) 

Approvals 78 11 (*14%) 40 (*51%) 27 (*35%) 

Matches 122 28 (*23%) 65 (*53%) 29 (*24%) 

Conversion 
from enquiry 
to approval 

14% 6% 19% 17% 

*percentage of RAA performance 

 

 

 

Page 15



 
 

 

 

Durham County Council’s Adoption Performance  

It is very positive to note that the transition to Adopt Coast to Coast has not had a detrimental 

impact on the children who have moved to adoptive families or recruitment of Adopt Coast to Coast 

prospective adopters assessed by Durham’s adoption team. 

 

Children’s Journey 

 2020/21  2021/22  
 

Analysis 

Waiting with PO 14 10 The slight upward trend of 
children waiting more than 6 
months for a match with their 
adoptive family reflects the 
national position.  Children 
with additional needs and 
groups of brothers and sisters 
are waiting longer.  The 
national campaigns continue 
to seek to address these 
challenges. 
In respect of interagency 
usage, the responsible 
Strategic Manager continues 
to monitor spend and is 
reassured that interagency 
spend is only requested after 
RAA resources have been 
explored and it is in the 
child’s best interests for an 
external match to be 
progressed. 

Waited over 6 months 1 4 

Matched 60 65 

Interagency use 18 (30%) 34 (52%) 

 

 

 

 

Prospective Adopter’s Journey 

Durham’s adoption team are responding to enquiries promptly.  The team cover Durham and all 

local authority areas south of Durham.  The attached maps show the enquiries and stage 1 

applications received from within Durham County.  

 

 

 

Page 16



 
 

 

Enquiries received 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commenced Stage 1 

 

  

Page 17



 
 

 

 

 

 2020/21 2021/22 Analysis 

Enquiries 100 217 The increased number of enquiries 
being converted to applications 
(stage 1) and approvals has 
enabled Durham to retain the high 
number of matches achieved in 
2020/21. 
There are already 25 prospective 
adoptive families in stage 1 and 2 
and with a further 11 in stage 2 
pending.  Therefore Durham would 
expect to approve these 36 
families in 2021/22, without the 
new enquiries received since the 
1st April 2022.  We therefore 
anticipate the 2nd year of Adopt 
Coast to Coast will build on the 
excellent performance that the 
Durham adoption team have 
achieved in 2021/22. 

Stage 1 13* (0 in stage 2 
pending) 

17* (further 11 in 
stage 2 pending) 

Stage 2 9* *8 

Approvals 41 40 

Number of 
matches for 
Durham 
approved 
adopters 

  

*at 31st March  

 

 

Prospective adopter journey 

Katie and James were one of 6 couples to have started their journey with Adopt Coast to Coast and 

had a child placed before our 1st anniversary. 

Katie and James have been a couple since they were teenagers and having married and enjoyed lots 

of quality time together as a couple, they felt the time was right to start their adoption application in 

April 2021.  

Katie said: “I’ve known since the age of 15 that I wouldn’t be able to conceive naturally so adoption 

was always on the cards for us.  We live in the same local authority as I work as a teacher and 

because I teach a few looked after children I know a lot of the social workers.  I didn’t want to apply 

with the local authority where we live because I thought it felt too close to home, but I heard about 

Adopt Coast to Coast and knew they would cover our area.” 

“The first part of the process felt long and we were checking our emails all of the time as there’s so 

many little steps to do that are out of your control.  We really enjoyed the training and felt like 

something was really happening which we were more involved in.  The second stage was around 6 

weeks and was timed to fit in with the school holidays for me which really helped us. 

“Our social worker was brilliant, when you’re first assigned a social worker, you’re worried about 

whether you’ll get on and how it’ll feel talking to them about such personal things, but our social 

worker was so down to earth and easy to talk to. What was clear from the start was that you don’t 

have to be a certain way to adopt, you don’t need lots of money just time and love. I think more 

Page 18



 
 

 

people should do it and more young people too – I’m 27 now and I was one of the youngest on our 

training and although it’s hard and emotionally draining at times it’s worth it.” 

Meeting our son for the first time was magical. He sat on my knee immediately and he was so 

relaxed and I felt an instant connection– it was definitely meant to be. 

14th April 2021 – enquired with Adopt Coast to Coast 
 
12th May 2021 – commenced stage 1 and completed 3-day preparation sessions 
 
15th July 2021 – moved into stage 2 

 

5th October 2021 – approved as suitable to adopt 
 
Following approval they were considered for children within their matching considerations and 
waited patiently as their preference was for a baby under 1 year of age who was not presenting with 
any additional needs.  
 
9th February 2022 – match agreed with a 9 month old baby boy. 
 
Speaking just four weeks after their little boy moved in with them Katie said: “We’d had so many 

years to prepare for adoption and we always knew it would be our route to parenthood so we 

accepted it and knowing him has been the best four weeks of our lives – he’s just amazing. I was 

worried before we started all of this that we wouldn’t have a connection but he’s our whole world - 

he 100% feels like our son already.  

 

Marketing activity priorities for 2022/23 

• Marketing activity will include a focus on potential enquirers for groups of brothers and 

sisters, children with additional health needs and/or developmental uncertainty. 

• Alongside the Adopt Coast to Coast activity, there is a pan regional initiative to increase 

opportunities for children to be adopted by families living in the North East and Cumbria 

through strategic partnership working across the 3 RAAs and 4 VAAs in our region. 

• Continue to review and develop marketing activity and the recruitment practice across the 

spokes being cognizant of the lived experience of children and their adoptive families and 

the findings from the national mystery shopper activity. 

 

 

 

Paula Gibbons 

Head of Service 

Adopt Coast to Coast 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Adopt Coast to Coast – year one 

P
age 21



Enquiries overview
Adopt Coast to 

Coast

Cumbria Durham Together for 

Children

Enquiries 

(2021/22)
558 186 (*33%) 216 (*39%) 156 (*28%)

Approvals 78 11 (*14%) 40 (*51%) 27 (*35%)

Matches 122 28 (*23%) 65 (*53%) 29 (*24%)

Conversion 

from enquiry 

to approval

14% 6% 19% 17%

M/F couple
43%

F/F couple
6%

M/M couple
6%

Single F
33%

Single M
12%

P
age 22



Adults journey

2020/21 2021/22

Enquiries 100 217

Stage 1 13* (0 in stage 2 

pending)

17* (further 11 in stage 2 

pending)

Stage 2 9* *8

Approvals 41 40

Katie and James were one of 6 couples to have started their journey 

with Adopt Coast to Coast and had a child placed before our first

anniversary.

Katie said: “What was clear from the start was that you don’t have to be a 

certain way to adopt, you don’t need lots of money just time and love. 

“We’d had so many years to prepare for adoption and we always knew it 

would be our route to parenthood so we accepted it and knowing him has 

been the best four weeks of our lives – he’s just amazing. I was worried 

before we started all of this that we wouldn’t have a connection but he’s our 

whole world - he 100% feels like our son already.”

P
age 23



How you can support us

• Share our news -messages can go 
far and wide

• Follow us on social media –
Facebook and Instagram

• Bring Adopt Coast to Coast into 
the conversation

• Let us know about marketing and 
recruitment opportunities you 
come across

• Be advocates for adoption  

P
age 24



The next steps

• Focus on potential enquirers for groups of brothers 

and sisters, children with additional health needs 

and/or developmental uncertainty

• Alongside the Adopt Coast to Coast activity, there is 

a pan regional initiative to increase opportunities 

for children to be adopted 

• Continue to review and develop marketing activity 

and the recruitment practice across the spokes 

being cognizant of the lived experience of children 

and their adoptive families and the findings from 

the national mystery shopper activity

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Presentation by Caitlyn and Luke 

CiCC CPP representatives

and Robert Johnson ~ Investing in Children

Durham Children in Care Council (CiCC) –April 22 Highlights

• Art stops continues through the IiC Art and Wellbeing Café.

• Two CiCC members are leading on the development of a family time room in 

Bishop Auckland and working with staff on this, whilst further developments are 

being made to develop family time approaches. The young people were also 

involved in interviews for Family Time workers.   

• Durham CiCC hosted the North East Regional Care Council in April –one of 

the main themes discussed was for care leavers to have their rights to free 

council tax transferred between Local Authorities.       

• A quarterly meeting took place with CiCC members and DCC’s CEO John 

Hewitt to discuss a range of issues including Foster Carer Training and support 

for young people impacted by Domestic Abuse.  

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 10



Presentation by Caitlyn and Luke 

CiCC CPP representatives

and Robert Johnson ~ Investing in Children

Durham Children in Care Council (CiCC) –April 22 Highlights

• One CiCC member has been invited to lunch to meet D25 (Durham 2025 City 

of Culture) judging panel, to ask questions and share ideas previously 

generated at CiCC planning meetings regarding the bid.

• Five CICC members from the younger group have shared ideas about a 

strategy being developed by County Durham Partnership regarding growing up 

in County Durham. There will also be an invite to meet with board members at 

a later date to progress things further.  

• CiCC older group reviewed the CPP annual report and provided feedback on 

the updates against the priorities set for 2021-22.  Following on from this, both 

CiCC groups met to set themes and discussion points for the joint CiCC/CPP 

meeting which took place on 20 May, where the next priority areas of focus for 

the CPP were identified. 

P
age 28



Document is Restricted

Page 29

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2022
	5 Adopt Coast to Coast - Report and presentation of Head of Service, Adopt Coast to Coast
	Item 5 - Adopt C to C - Appendix 2
	Item 5 - Adopt C to C - presentation

	10 Children in Care Council Update - Presentation of Project Officer, Investing in Children
	13 Regulation 44 Visits and Regulatory Body Ratings of Children's Residential Homes - Joint Report of Head of Children's Social Care and Head of Early Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable Children
	Item 13 Appendix 2
	Item 13 Appendix 3


